
 

 
 

  
  Shropshire Council 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Shirehall 
Abbey Foregate 
Shrewsbury 
SY2 6ND 

   
Date:   Friday, 17 July 2015 
 

 
Committee:  
Pensions Board 
 
Date: Monday, 27 July 2015 
Time: 10.00 am 
Venue: Wenlock Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 6ND 
  
You are requested to attend the above meeting.  
The Agenda is attached 
 
 
Claire Porter 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
Members of Pensions Board 
Liz Furey – Employer Rep 
Pat Hockley – Pensioner Rep 
Mike Morris – Pensioner Rep 
Stuart Wheeler – Employer Rep 

  

 
 
Your Committee Officer is:  
 
Michelle Dulson  Committee Officer 
Tel:   01743 252727 
Email:   michelle.dulson@shropshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 
1  Introductions  

 
 

2  Election of Chairman  
 
 

3  Apologies  
 
 

4  Appointment of Vice-Chairman  
 
 

5  Terms of Reference (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
To approve the Terms of Reference, attached marked 5. 
 
Contact: Justin Bridges  (01743) 252072 
 
 

6  Declarations of Conflicts of Interest  
 
Members are reminded that they should declare any interests which may lead to 
conflicts of interest in the subject area or any specific agenda item of this 
meeting.  A conflict of interest is defined as a financial or other interest which is 
likely to prejudice a person’s exercise of functions as a member of the Pension 
Board. It does not include a financial or other interest arising merely by virtue of 
that person being a member of the LGPS. 
 
 
 

7  Standards of Conduct Policy (Pages 9 - 12) 
 
The Shropshire Council Code of Conduct which also applies to Pension Board 
Members is attached, marked 7. 
  
Contact: Justin Bridges (01743) 252072 
 
 

8  Confirmation of Undertaking of Duties  
 
Contact: Rebecca Purfit (01743) 254457 
 
 

9  Training Requirements (Pages 13 - 18) 
 
The report of the Pensions Communication Officer is attached, marked 9. 



 
Contact: Rebecca Purfit (01743) 254457 
 
 

10  Pension Committee Reports  
 
Please click on the link below to access the reports considered by the Pensions 
Committee at its meeting on 26 June 2015. 
 
http://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-
services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=260&MId=2942&Ver=4 
 
Contact:  Michelle Dulson (01743) 252727 
 
 

11  Pension Fund Annual Report Overview  
 
Please click on the link below to access last year’s Pension Fund Annual 
Report. 
 
http://static.shropshire.gov.uk/temp/pensions/Annual-Report-2014.pdf 
 
Contact: Justin Bridges (01743) 252072 / James Walton (01743) 205011. 
 
 

12  Consideration of any actions required in advance of the next meeting  
 
 

13  Work Plan for 2015/16  
 
To include: 
 
- Budget 

 
- Issues of Concern 

 
Contact: Rebecca Purfit (01743) 254457 
 
 

14  Exclusion of Press and Public  
 
To consider approving a resolution under paragraph 10.2 of the Council’s 
Access to Information Procedure Rules that the proceedings of the Pensions 
Board in relation to Agenda Item 15 only shall not be conducted in public on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by 
the categories specified against it. 
 
 



15  Exempt Pension Committee Reports (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 19 - 
186) 
 
Exempt reports considered by the Pensions Committee at its meeting on 26 
June 2015, attached marked 15. 
 
Contact: Michelle Dulson (01743) 252727 
 
 



 

 SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND  

 

Terms of reference for the Pension Board of the 
Shropshire County Pension Fund 
 
Terms of Reference and Delegated Authorities  
 
1) Introduction  
The purpose of this document is to set out the terms of reference for the local Pension Board of 
Shropshire Council (the ‘Administering Authority’) a scheme manager as defined under Section 4 of 
the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 for the Shropshire County Pension Fund. The Pension Board is 
established by Shropshire Council under the powers of Section 5 of the Public Service Pensions Act 
2013 and regulation 106 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (LGPS 
Regulations).  As such, the Constitution of Shropshire Council does not apply to this Pension Board 
unless expressly referred to within and permitted by these Terms of Reference. 
 
The Pension Board is established by the Administering Authority and operates independently of the 
Pension Committee.  Relevant information about its creation and operation are contained in these 
Terms of Reference. 
 
The Pension Board is not a committee constituted under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 
1972 and therefore no general duties, responsibilities or powers assigned to such committees or to 
any sub-committees or officers under the constitution, standing orders or scheme of delegation of the 
Administering Authority apply to the Pension Board unless expressly included in this document. 
 
Except where approval has been granted under regulation 106(2) of the LGPS Regulations the 
Pension Board shall be constituted separately from any committee or sub-committee constituted 
under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 with delegated authority to execute the function 
of the Administering Authority. 
   
2) Powers of the Pension Board 
The Pension Board will exercise all its powers and duties in accordance with the law and these Terms 
of Reference. 
 
3) Role of the Local Pension Board  
The role of the local Pension Board as defined by regulation 106 (1) of the LGPS Regulations, is to 
assist Shropshire Council, the Administering Authority, as Scheme Manager; –  
- to secure compliance with the LGPS Regulations and any other legislation relating to the 
governance and administration of the LGPS.  

- to secure compliance with requirements imposed in relation to the LGPS by the Pensions Regulator.  

- to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the LGPS for the Shropshire 
County Pension Fund.  

The Council considers this to mean that the Pension Board is providing oversight of these matters 
and, accordingly, the Pension Board is not a decision making body in relation to the management of 
the Pension Fund but merely makes recommendations to assist in such management.  The Pension 
Fund’s management powers and responsibilities which have been, and may be, delegated by the 
Council to committees, sub-committees and officers of the Council, remain solely the powers and 
responsibilities of those committees, sub-committees and officers including but not limited to the 
setting and delivery of the Fund's strategies, the allocation of the Fund's assets and the appointment 
of contractors, advisors and fund managers.    
 
The Pension Board will ensure that in undertaking their role it: 
- is done effectively and efficiently  
- complies with relevant legislation and 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



- is done by having due regard and in the spirit of the Code of Practice on the governance and 
administration of public service pension schemes issued by the Pension Regulator and any other 
relevant statutory or non-statutory guidance.  

 
4) Composition of the Pension Board 
 
The Pension Board shall consist of 4 voting members and be constituted as follows:  
i) 2 employer representatives;  

ii) 2 scheme member representatives;  

Employer representatives shall be office holders or senior employees of employers of the Fund or 
have experience of representing scheme employers in a similar capacity.  Employer representatives 
can also include elected members however, no officer or elected member of the Administering 
Authority who is responsible for the discharge of any function of the Administering Authority under the 
LGPS Regulations may serve as a member of the Pension Board. All employer representatives must 
have the capacity to represent Pension Fund employers. 
 
Member representatives shall be scheme members of the Shropshire County Pension Fund and have 
the capacity to represent scheme members of the Fund. 
 
There shall be an equal number of Member and Employer Representatives.  
 
An independent member and substitute members may also be included in the composition of the 
Pension Board at the discretion of the Appointment Panel. If appointed they would be expected to 
undertake the same training as full members. Substitute members for employer and scheme member 
representatives will have voting rights but an independent member or any other members appointed 
to the Pension Board by the Appointment Panel will not have voting rights on the Pension Board.  
 
 
 
5) Appointment of members of the Pension Board  
The Appointment Panel will determine any eligibility and/or selection criteria that will apply to Pension 
Board members having due regard to the LGPS Regulations and any other relevant Code of Practice 
and guidance (statutory or otherwise). 
 
The process for selecting employer representatives and scheme member representatives (including 
substitutes where relevant) of the Pension Board is set out below:-  
 
Employer representatives – each employer will be invited to nominate one representative to represent 
employers on the Pension Board. 
 
Scheme member representatives – all active, deferred and pensioner scheme members will be invited 
to submit applications to join the Pension Board. 
 
The applications and nominations will then be subject to a selection process determined and carried 
out by the Appointment Panel who has absolute discretion to reject any nomination or application 
where they consider the individual does not appropriately meet the eligibility and/or selection criteria.  
 
The term of office will be for 4 years with a possible extension for up to 2 years.  The policy for re-
appointment to the Pension Board will the same as stated above. Former or existing members of the 
Pension Board can be reappointed with no limit on the number of terms they may have.  An employer 
representative appointment will automatically cease if the individual is no longer in the employment of 
that employer.  
 
Pension Board membership may be terminated prior to the end of the term of office due to: 
 

• A member representative no longer being a scheme member or a representative of the body 
on which their appointment relied 

Page 2



• An employer representative no longer holding the office or employment or being a member of 
the body on which their appointment relied 

• A Pension Board member no longer being able to demonstrate their capacity to attend and 
prepare for meetings or participate in required training. 

• A Pension Board member has a conflict of interest which cannot be managed in accordance 
with the conflict policy. 

• A Pension Board member who is an elected member becomes a member of the Pension 
Committee.   

 
Term dates may not be exact due to the period of the appointment process.  The term of office may 
therefore be extended for this purpose or other exceptional circumstances by up to three months by 
the Appointment Panel.   
 
The Chair and Deputy Chair of the local Pension Board will be determined by the Appointment Panel. 
The Chair of the Pension Board: 

• Shall ensure the Pension Board delivers its purpose as set out in these Terms of Reference 

• Shall ensure that meetings are productive and effective and that opportunity is provided for 
the views of all Pension Board members to be expressed and considered, and 

• Shall seek to reach consensus and ensure that decisions are properly put to a vote when it 
cannot be reached. Instances of a failure to reach a consensus position will be recorded and 
published. 

 
Where the Appointment Panel does not consider that any of the Pension Board members have the 
requisite knowledge and skills to adequately fulfil the role of Chair at the point in time that they are 
appointing the Chair, they will appoint an independent member to the Pension Board who will 
undertake the role of Chair of the Pension Board.  The independent member may have an alternate 
who can undertake the role of Chair in his/her absence which would be agreed by the Appointment 
Panel.   
 
Other than by ceasing to be eligible as set out above, a Pension Board member, including any 
Independent Member, may only be removed from office during a term of appointment by the 
unanimous agreement of the Appointment Panel. Such reasons may include non-compliance with 
these Terms of Reference including inappropriate conduct, conflicts of interest, avoidance of training 
or low meeting attendance.  Any person wishing to resign from their position as a Pension Board 
member will be expected to use best endeavours to provide at least one month's written notice of their 
resignation and a new appointment process will commence in relation to that position on receipt of the 
resignation. 
 
6) Quorum  
 
Each Pension Board member should endeavour to attend all Pension Board meetings during the 
year. Substitutes, where appointed, will be able to attend on behalf of absent Pension Board 
members. Records of attendance of all Members will be maintained. In the event of consistent non-
attendance by any Pension Board member, then the tenure of that membership should be reviewed 
by the Appointment Panel. 
 
The Pension Board shall have a formal quorum of 2 made up of at least 1 employer and 1 member 
representative. Advisers and co-opted persons do not count towards the quorum although substitute 
members and any Independent Member will count. A meeting that is (or becomes at any point) not 
quorate will cease immediately.   
 
7) Location and Timing 
 
The Pension Board will normally meet at the offices of the Shropshire Council, although meeting may 
be permitted at other venues.  
 
Meetings should be within the times of 9am and 5pm Monday to Friday on a normal working day apart 
from in exceptional circumstances agreed by all Pension Board members and other individuals 
expected to attend the Pension Board.  
 

Page 3



The Pension Board will meet a minimum of twice in each calendar year.  
 
Urgent business of the Pension Board between meetings may, in exceptional circumstances, be 
conducted via communications between members of the Pension Board including telephone 
conferencing and e-mails.   
 
8) Conflicts of Interest  
 
Each member of the Pension Board (as well as any other attendees participating in the meeting) will 
be expected to declare, on appointment and at each meeting, any interests which may lead to 
conflicts of interest in the subject area or specific agenda of that Pension Board.  
 
A conflict of interest is defined as a financial or other interest which is likely to prejudice a person’s 
exercise of functions as a member of the Pension Board. It does not include a financial or other 
interest arising merely by virtue of that person being a member of the LGPS.  
 
The Chair of the Pension Board must be satisfied that the Pension Board is acting within: 

• the conflicts of interest requirements of the Public Service Pensions Act and the LGPS 
Regulations, and 

• in the spirit of any national guidance or code of practice in relation to conflicts of interest 
at the Pension Board, and 

• in accordance with any Shropshire County Pension Fund Conflicts of Interest Policy or 
Procedures that apply to the Pension Board.    

Each member of the Pension Board, or a person proposed to be appointed to the Pension Board, (as 
well as attendees participating in the meeting) must provide the Chair of the Pension Board with such 
information as he or she reasonably requires for the purposes of demonstrating that there is no 
conflict of interest. 
 
The Appointment Panel will adopt the role of ensuring that the Chair of the Pension Board does not 
have a conflict of interest in the same way as the Chair does in relation to all other Pension Board 
members. 
 
9) Receipt of Advice and Information 
The Pension Board will be supported in its role and responsibilities by having access to any 
Independent Member of the Pension Board (should an Independent Member be appointed), the 
officers of Shropshire County Pension Fund and, via them, and where considered appropriate, access 
to the advisers to the Shropshire County Pension Fund.   In addition Pension Board members will 
receive the final reports, minutes and agendas relating to all Pensions Committee meetings and may 
attend Pensions Committee meetings (including during exempt items).  
 
Insofar as it relates to its role, the Pension Board, may also;  

• request and receive information and reports from the Pensions Committee or any other 
body or officer responsible for the management of the Fund 

• examine decisions made or actions taken by the Pensions Committee or any other body 
or officer responsible for the management of the Fund. 

 
The Pension Board may wish to be supported in its role and responsibilities through the appointment 
of independent advisers to help better perform its duties.  Any further requests for information and 
advice, including the appointment of advisers to the Pension Board, are subject to the approval of the 
Appointment Panel, who will be required to consider positively all reasonable requests in relation to 
the role of the Pension Board whilst being mindful of value for money. 
 
10) Knowledge and Skills  
Under the requirements of the Public Service Pensions Act, a member of the Pension Board must be 
conversant with –  

• The legislation and associated guidance of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  

• Any document recording policy about the administration of the LGPS which is for the time 
being adopted by the Shropshire County Pension Fund.  

 

Page 4



In addition, a member of the Pension Board must have knowledge and understanding of –  

• The law relating to pensions, and  

• Any other matters which are prescribed in regulations.  
 
It is for individual Pension Board members to be satisfied that they have the appropriate degree of 
knowledge and understanding to enable them to properly exercise their functions as a member of the 
Pension Board.  
 
In line with this requirement, Pension Board members are required to be able to demonstrate their 
knowledge and understanding and to refresh and keep their knowledge up to date. Pension Board 
members are therefore required to: 
- participate in training events (a written record of relevant training and development will be 

maintained)  
- undertake a personal training needs analysis or other method to identify gaps in skills, 

competencies and knowledge.  
- comply with the Pension Fund's Training Policy insofar as it relates to Pension Board members.  
 
11) Pension Board Meetings – Notice and Minutes  
The Committee Clerk in consultation with the Head of Treasury & Pensions & Chair of the Pension 
Board shall give notice to all Pension Board members of every meeting of the Pension Board and 
agree an agenda prior to each Pension Board meeting. The agenda and any papers for the Pension 
Board will be issued at least 5 working days (where practicable) in advance of the meeting except in 
the case of matters of urgency.   
 
Draft minutes of each meeting including all actions and agreements will be recorded and circulated to 
all Pension Board members within 10 working days after the meeting. These draft minutes will be 
subject to formal agreement by the Chair taking consideration of comments by Pension Board 
members (which may be done electronically between meetings).   
 
The minutes may, at the discretion of the Chair, be edited to exclude items on the grounds that they 
would either involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as specified in Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 or it being confidential for the purposes of Section 100A (2) of that 
Act and/or they represent data covered by the Data Protection Act 1998.  

The minutes of the Pension Board will be submitted to the Pensions Committee as standard. 

12) Standards of Conduct  
The role of Pension Board members requires the highest standards of conduct and therefore Part 5 of 
Shropshire Council’s Constitution relating to Codes of Conduct applies to Pension Board members as 
it would apply to a Co-opted Member of a local authority committee insofar as they can be reasonably 
considered to apply to the role of members of the Pension Board.  However, the following elements of 
Part 5 do not apply to Pension Board members: 
- declaration of private interests (see instead the section entitled Conflicts of Interest in this Terms 

of Reference) 
- procedures to deal with breaches (which will be dealt with by the Appointment Panel). 
 
It will be the role of the Chair to ensure that all members of the Pension Board show due respect for 
process, that all views are fully heard and considered, to determine when consensus has been met 
and to interpret these Terms of Reference when necessary.  
 
13) Decision making  
Each employer and scheme member representative of the Pension Board will have an individual 
voting right but it is expected the Pension Board will as far as possible reach a consensus. The Chair 
of the Pension Board will have the final deciding vote in the event of an equality of votes unless an 
independent chair has been appointed. Any such votes will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.  
 
14) Access to the Public and Publication of Pension Board information  
The following will be entitled to attend Pension Board meetings in an observer capacity: 
• Members of the Shropshire Pensions Committee 

Page 5



• the Head of Treasury and Pensions, the Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer 
• other officers or advisers of Shropshire County Pension Fund or other employers involved 
with the management of the Pension Fund subject to approval in advance by the Chair, or on request 
by the Chair 
• any other person requested to attend by the Chair 
• any other person subject to approval in advance by the Chair. 
Any such attendees will be permitted to speak on request to the Chair. 
 
Otherwise, the Pension Board will be treated in the same way as a Committee of Shropshire Council 
and, as such, members of the public may attend and papers will be made public in accordance with 
the Access to Information Rules in Shropshire Council's Constitution.  
 
In accordance with the Public Services Pension Act 2013 the Administering Authority shall publish 
information about the Pension Board on the Fund’s website including: 
 

• The names of Pension Board members and their contact details 

• The representation of employers and members on the Pension Board 

• The role of the Pension Board 

• These Terms of Reference 

• Agendas and minutes of the Pension Board meetings 

• Training and attendance logs 

• Details on the work of the Pension Board in the Fund’s annual report 
 
Information may be excluded on the grounds that it would either involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as specified in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 or it 
being confidential for the purposes of Section 100A(2) of that Act and/or they represent data covered 
by the Data Protection Act 1998. 
  
15) Accountability  
The Pension Board will be collectively and individually accountable to Shropshire Council. 
 
16) Expense Reimbursement, remuneration and allowances  
a) Subject to b) below, an allowance will be made to both Employer and Scheme Member 
Representatives for attending meetings relating to Pension Board business (including attending 
training) at the rates contained in the Members' Allowances Scheme in the Shropshire Council's 
Constitution for non-elected members/co-opted members of a Shropshire Council Committee. 
 
b) Employers of Representatives on the Pension Board should provide appropriate capacity to 
allow the Representative to perform this role within their normal working day without any reduction in 
pay.  If that is the case, the Representative will not be entitled to any allowance.   
 
c) All Pension Board members will also be entitled to claim travel and subsistence allowances at 
rates contained in the Members' Allowances Scheme in the Shropshire Council's Constitution.   
 
17) Budget 
 
The Pension Board is to be provided with adequate resources to fulfil its role.  In doing so the budget 
for the Pension Board will be met from the Fund and determined by seeking approval from the s151 
Officer for any expenditure it wishes to make.  
 
 
18) Reporting 
 
The Pension Board should report any concerns over a decision made by the Pension Committee to 
the Pension Committee subject to the agreement of at least 50% of voting Pension Board members 
provided that all voting members are present.  If not all voting members are present then the 
agreement should be of all voting members who are present, where the meeting remains quorate. 
 

Page 6



Where the Pension Board is satisfied that there has been a breach of regulation or a breach of the 
Pension Regulator’s Code of Conduct which has been reported to the Pension Committee and has 
not been rectified within a reasonable period of time it is under obligation to escalate the breach. 
 
The appropriate internal route for escalation is to the Monitoring Officer or the Section 151 Officer. 
The Pension Board may report concerns to the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board for consideration 
subsequent to, but not instead of, using the appropriate internal route for escalation. 
 
Pension Board members are also subject to the requirements to report breaches of law under the 
Public Services Pensions Act 2013 and the Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice. 
 
19) Review, Interpretation and Publication of Protocol 
 
These Terms of Reference have been agreed by Shropshire Council. The Council will monitor and 
evaluate the operation of the Pension Board and may review these Terms of Reference from time to 
time.   
 
These Terms of Reference will be incorporated into the Council's Constitution and will be publicly 
available as part of the Constitution as defined in the Council's Constitution and may be amended by 
the same means as permitted for the Constitution.  It will also form part of the Shropshire County 
Pension Fund's Governance Policy and Compliance Statement which will be made available in 
accordance with the requirements of the LGPS Regulations. 
 
20) Acting in the interests of the entire pension fund 
 
Though members of the Pension Board include representatives of specific categories of stakeholder 
(i.e. scheme members and employers) each member is required to have due regard to the Role of the 
Pension Board as outlined in these Terms of Reference.  Accordingly all members are expected to 
work jointly in the best interest of the entire Pension Fund, rather than representing the interest of any 
individual stakeholders. This should not prevent Members from sharing their knowledge on how 
matters might impact specific stakeholders of the Fund.  

21) Definitions  
The undernoted terms shall have the following meaning when used in this document: 

 “Pension Board” or “Board”  Means the local Pension Board for 
Shropshire Council administering authority 
for the Shropshire County Pension Fund as 
required under the Public Service Pensions 
Act 2013  

"Fund" or "Pension Fund" Shropshire County Pension Fund 

”Scheme Manager”  Means Shropshire Council as administering 
authority of the Shropshire County Pension 
Fund.  

"the LGPS Regulations" The Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations 2013 (as amended) 

"the Public Service Pensions Act" The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (as 
amended) 

“Appointment Panel” A Panel of two officers consisting of the 
Monitoring Officer or Deputy Monitoring 
Officer and Section 151 Officer or Deputy 
Section 151 Officer.     

“Chair”  Reference to duties to be performed, or 
authorities exercised, by the Chair  

Page 7



“LGPS”  The Local Government Pension Scheme as 
constituted by the Local Government 
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013,the 
Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Transitional Provisions, Savings and 
Amendment) Regulations 2014 and the  
The Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Management and Investment of Funds) 
Regulations 2009  
[In Scotland;  
The Local Government Pension Scheme as 
constituted by the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership 
and Contributions) (Scotland) Regulations 
2008, the Local Government Pension 
Scheme Administration) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2008, The Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions) 
(Scotland) Regulations 2008 and the  
The Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Management and Investment of Funds) 
(Scotland) Regulations 2010]  

“Scheme”  Means the Local Government Pension 
Scheme as defined under “LGPS”  

“Conflict of Interest” This is defined by the Public Service 
Pensions Act as: 
"A financial or other interest which is likely 
to prejudice the person’s exercise of 
functions as a member of the board (but 
does not include a financial or other interest 
arising merely by virtue of membership of 
the scheme or any connected scheme)" 

“The Pension Committee” Means the Shropshire Pension Committee 
or any committee or sub-committee that 
may be established with delegated powers 
for the management and administration of 
the Fund on behalf of Shropshire Council as 
Administering Authority 

“Relevant legislation” Means relevant overriding legislation as well 
as the Pension Regulator’s Codes of 
Practice as they apply to the Administering 
Authority and the Pension Board 
notwithstanding that the Codes of Practice 
are not legislation 

  

Means the Shropshire Pension Committee 
or any committee or sub-committee that 
may be established with delegated powers 
for the management and administration of 
the Fund on behalf of Shropshire Council as 
Administering Authority 
Means relevant overriding legislation as well 
as the Pension Regulator’s Codes of 
Practice as they apply to the Administering 
Authority and the Pension Board 
notwithstanding that the Codes of Practice 
are not legislation 

   

Page 8



 
 
 
 

CODE OF CONDUCT  
 

You are a member or co-opted member of the Shropshire Council and hence you 
shall have regard to the following principles – selflessness, integrity, objectivity, 
accountability, openness, honesty and leadership. 

Accordingly, when acting in your capacity as a member or co-opted member - 

You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial or other material 
benefits for yourself, your family, a friend or close associate. 
 
You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to outside 
individuals or organisations that might seek to influence you in the performance of 
your official duties. 
 
When carrying out your public duties you must make all choices, such as making 
public appointments, awarding contracts or recommending individuals for rewards or 
benefits, on merit. 
 
You are accountable for your decisions to the public and you must co-operate fully 
with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office. 
 
You must be as open as possible about your decisions and actions and the 
decisions and actions of your authority and should be prepared to give reasons for 
those decisions and actions. 
 
You must declare any private interests, both pecuniary and non-pecuniary, including 
your membership of any Trade Union, that relate to your public duties and must take 
steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest, 
including registering and declaring interests in a manner conforming with the 
procedures set out in the box below. 
 
You must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of your 
authority, ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes 
(including party political purposes) and you must have regard to any applicable Local 
Authority Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986. 
 
You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in your 
public post, in particular as characterised by the above requirements, by leadership 
and example. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



 
REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS 

 
As a Member1 of Shropshire Council (“the Council”) I am required to register certain 
interests (known as “disclosable pecuniary interests”) of my own and of my partner2. 
These interests are set out in the table below.  In addition, I will register my 
membership of any Trade Union. 

When I am present at a meeting of the Council and I have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest (which includes your own interest and that of your partner) in any matter 
being considered which is entered in the Council’s register of interests, I do not need to 
disclose it to the meeting, but I will withdraw from the meeting room when the matter is 
being discussed and will not participate, or participate further, in any discussion of, or 
any vote taken on, the matter at the meeting.  
 
If my disclosable pecuniary interest (which includes your own interest and that of 
your partner) is not entered in the Council’s register of interests, I will disclose its 
existence and, unless it is a sensitive interest3, its nature, to the meeting and will notify 
the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the meeting.  I will withdraw from 
the meeting room when the matter is being discussed and will not participate, or 
participate further, in any discussion of, or any vote taken on, the matter at the meeting.  
 

Subject Prescribed description 

  

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain by you or your partner 

 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit 
(other than from the Council) made or provided within the 
relevant period4 in respect of any expenses incurred by 
you in carrying out your duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

                                                           

1 “member” means a member of the Council  and includes a co-opted member; 

2 Partner includes your spouse, civil partner or person with whom you are living as if they were your 

spouse or civil partner 

3 An interest is sensitive if its nature is such that you, and your Monitoring Officer, consider that its 

disclosure could lead to you, or a person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation. 

4 “relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which you give a notification of 

its existence 

Page 10



Contracts Any contract which is made between you or your partner 
(or a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest5) and the Council — 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or 
works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land6 which is within the area of 
the Council. 

 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in 
the area of the Council for a month or longer. 

 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the Council ; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest. 

 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities7 of a body where— 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business 
or land in the area of the Council ; and 

(b) either— 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds 
£25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital 
of that body; or 
 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one 
class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one 
class in which you or your partner  has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of 
that class. 

 

                                                           

5 “body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which you or your partner  

is a partner or a body corporate of which you or your partner  is a director, or in the securities of which 

you or your partner  has a beneficial interest; and “director” includes a member of the committee of 

management of an industrial and provident society 

6 “land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a 

right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income; 

7 “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 

investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other 

securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society. 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Committee and date 
Pensions Board 
 
27 July 2015 
 
10.00am 
 

 Item 
 
 
 
Public 

 
PENSIONS BOARD TRAINING REQUIREMENTS 

 
 
Responsible Officer Rebecca Purfit 
Email: rebecca.purfit@shropshire.gov.uk  Tel: 01743 254457   

 
1.  Summary 

The report provides Pension Board members with information on the 
appropriate knowledge and understanding required to ensure the 
regulatory requirements are met in relation to training.  

 
2.  Recommendations 

2.1 Members are asked to accept the position as set out in the report and; 
 

2.2 To read and understand the Pension Regulators Code of Practice no. 
14 – Governance and Administration of public service pension 
schemes Appendix A. And; 

 
2.3 Agree a training policy is established and put into place and; 

2.4 Designate the Pensions Communications Officer to take responsibility 
for ensuring the training requirements of the Board are met and 
recorded.  

 

REPORT 

 

3.  Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 
 
3.1  Risk Management  

By ensuring the guidance and legislation mentioned in this report is  
followed and adhered to risks are minimised.  

3.2 Human Rights Act Appraisal 
  The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the 
  Human Rights Act 1998. 

3.3  Environmental Appraisal 
  There is no direct environmental, equalities or climate change  
  consequence of this report. 

 
3.4  Financial Implications 

Agenda Item 9

Page 13



 
Pensions Committee; 27 July 2015: Pensions Board Training Requirements  

 2 
 

Any financial implications regarding the cost of training mentioned in 
this report will be managed to a minimum and will be chargeable to the 
Shropshire County Pension Fund not directly by Shropshire Council.  
 

4.  Regulatory Requirements  
 

      4.1  The Pension Board was established by Shropshire Council under the 
powers of Section 5 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and 
regulation 106 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 
2013 (LGPS Regulations). The Pensions Board was created in April 
2015. The Board members are: 
 

• Pat Hockley – Member Representative 
• Mike Morris – Member Representative  
• Stuart Wheeler – Employer Representative 

• Liz Furey – Employer Representative 
 

4.2  Item 10 in the Pensions Board ‘Terms of Reference’ is entitled 
‘Knowledge and Skills’ and outlines the level of knowledge expected of 
each member of the Pensions Board. An extract of item 10 is below: 
 
Under the requirements of the Public Service Pensions Act, a member 
of the Pension Board must be conversant with – 

• The legislation and associated guidance of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). 

• Any document recording policy about the administration of the 
LGPS which is for the time being adopted by the Shropshire 
County Pension Fund. 

 
In addition, a member of the Pension Board must have knowledge and 
understanding of – 

• The law relating to pensions, and 

• Any other matters which are prescribed in regulations. 
 
It is for individual Pension Board members to be satisfied that 
they have the appropriate degree of knowledge and 
understanding to enable them to properly exercise their 
functions as a member of the Pension Board. 

In line with this requirement, Pension Board members are 
required to be able to demonstrate their knowledge and 
understanding and to refresh and keep their knowledge up to 
date. Pension Board members are therefore required to: 

- participate in training events (a written record of relevant 
training and development will be maintained) 

- undertake a personal training needs analysis or other 
method to identify gaps in skills, competencies and 
knowledge. 

Page 14



 
Pensions Committee; 27 July 2015: Pensions Board Training Requirements  

 3 
 

- comply with the Pension Fund's Training Policy insofar as 
it relates to Pension Board members. 

 
 

4.3  To meet the requirements of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 
(PSPA 2013) the Pensions Regulator has issued Code of Practice no. 
14 (the Code) as a reference for the Fund and the Pensions Board. In 
the section ‘Knowledge and understanding required by pension board 
members’ full guidance on the areas of knowledge and understanding 
is outlined. Board members must familiarise themselves with the Code 
which can be found in Appendix A.   

 
4.4 Board members also need to have read and understood the Pensions 

Regulator compliance and enforcement policy for public service 
pension schemes. Appendix B.   

 
4.5  To meet the legal requirements of the PSPA 2013 each Pension Board 

member must be conversant with the rules of the Scheme and any 
policies about the administration which have been adopted. All policies 
made by the Fund are available on the website 
https://shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk/?page_id=123 .  
 
 

5.  Demonstrating knowledge and understanding  
 

5.1 As legal responsibilities began from the date of appointment to the 
Board in April 2015, steps have already been taken to ensure the 
members of the Pensions Board have received initial training to get up 
to speed on the Scheme rules. All four members of the Board attended 
training on 28 May 2015 in Liverpool, run by the Local Government 
Association (LGA). The programme covered presentations from 
Eversheds, AON Hewitt, Mercers, Investec and the LGA. Further 
training has also been booked for each Board Member with AON 
Hewitt throughout July 2015. This training is being run over 3 days and 
each Board member can attend either 1, 2 or 3 days.  

 
5.2 Funds should establish and maintain policies and arrangements for 

acquiring and retaining knowledge and understanding to support their 
pension board members. It is recommended that the Pensions 
Communications Officer is designated as the person to take 
responsibility for ensuring that a framework is developed and 
implemented including establishing and putting into place a training 
policy.   

 
5.3 However, it is the responsibility of individual pension board members to 

ensure that they have the appropriate degree of knowledge and 
understanding to enable them to properly exercise their functions as a 
member of the pension board.  

 
     5.2 The designated person will keep appropriate records of the learning 

activities of individual pension board members and the board as a 

Page 15



 
Pensions Committee; 27 July 2015: Pensions Board Training Requirements  

 4 
 

whole. This will help pension board members to demonstrate steps 
they have taken to comply with legal requirements and how they have 
mitigated risks associated with knowledge gaps. Training undertaken 
by the Board will be reported on an annual basis.  

 
    6.             Acquiring knowledge and understanding 

 
6.1  The regulator has provided an e-learning programme to help meet the 

needs of pension board members, whether or not they have access to 
other learning. Board members are required to undertake this 
programme as the next part of their training by the next Board meeting. 
The programme ensures that in line with the Code:  
 

• Covers the type and degree of knowledge and understanding 
required; 

• reflects the legal requirements, and  
• is delivered within an appropriate timescale.  

 
6.2  The e-learning programme is accessed via the Regulator’s “Trustee 

Toolkit” found on their website: 
https://trusteetoolkit.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/  
 
This provides a set of seven modules covering the key themes in the 
Code of Practice on governance and administration of public service 
schemes.  Each module has an interactive tutorial and test which when 
completed assesses the understanding of each module. The practical 
examples and check lists for each Fund are particularly useful.  

 
Tutorials and assessments can be left mid – way through and then 
returned to later.    

 
The modules are:  

 

• Conflicts of interest 
• Managing risk and internal controls 
• Maintaining accurate member data 
• Maintaining member contributions 
• Providing information to members and others 
• Resolving internal disputes 
• Reporting breaches of the law 

 
The Regulator suggests each module’s tutorial should take no more 
than 30 minutes to complete.  

 
6.3 On completion of each module a PDF certificate is provided and this 

should be downloaded and forwarded to the Pensions Communications 
Officer to record on file. An example of the certificate is at appendix C.  

 
7.  Upcoming pension events  
 

Page 16



 
Pensions Committee; 27 July 2015: Pensions Board Training Requirements  

 5 
 

7.1 Board members are invited to a Members Training Day on the 29 July 
in the Shirehall, Shrewsbury. The training day is held annually for 
Committee members and Board members are invited to add to the 
external training which has been offered to date. Board members have 
also been informed of the date of the Fund Annual Meeting being held 
on the 12 November 2015 at the Shirehall, Shrewsbury. Future events 
run by the Fund will be communicated to the Board to add to the 
external training on offer.  

   
  

 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 
 
 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 
NA 
 

Local Member 
NA 
 

Appendices 
Appendix A – The Pensions Regulator Code of Practice No 14 
Appendix B –  The Pensions Regulator compliance and enforcement policy for public 
service pension schemes 
Appendix C – The Pension Regulator Module Certificate 
 

 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15

Page 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 119

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 149

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 155

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 171

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 172

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 173

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 177

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 186

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Terms of Reference
	7 Standards of Conduct Policy
	9 Training Requirements
	15 Exempt Pension Committee Reports (Exempted by Category 3)
	8.  EXEMPT - Appendix A Aon Hewitt Manager Selection Report
	8.  EXEMPT - Appendix B Briefing Notes, Performance and Fee Proposals
	8.  EXEMPT - Appendix C Aon Hewitt Manager Opinions
	9.  EXEMPT - Appointment of LDI Manager
	9.  EXEMPT - Appendix A Aon Hewitt Manager Selection Report
	9.  EXEMPT - Appendix B Briefing Notes, Member Questions and Fee Proposals
	9.  EXEMPT - Appendix C Aon Hewitt Manager Opinions
	2015 03 20 Exempt Pensions Committee Minutes
	11.  EXEMPT - New Admission Bodies
	12.  EXEMPT - Investment Monitoring - Quarter to 31 March 2015


